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CLARIFICATIONS # 1 
 

 
Contract name.: Program Management Consultant for Renewable Energy IPP Facilitation Project 
Reference No.: RFP / MFK /2019/ QCBS /No.016 
Date: 10 October 2019 
No. Question Answer 

1.  

Scope of Work Section 2.2: MFK is seeking the professional services of a program 
management consultant (firm) to represent it and assume full responsibility for the 
overall implementation and management of the Renewable Energy Facilitation 
activities under the Kosovo Threshold Program during the remaining 
implementation period. 
 
Considering the project is related to many stakeholders, the consultant is 
depended on their willingness and capabilities, therefore full responsibility should 
be limited to the external factors. 
Please indicate your understanding on the topic? 

The consultant is responsible for full performance of the Scope of Work. 
Performance of the scope of work is not dependent on external factors. The 
consultant/contractor will be expected to perform the full scope of work 
and complete the scope of work during the period of performance. 

2.  

Scope of Work Section 2.2: Donor outreach and capital raising activities assisting 
MFK and on 
behalf of key parties designated by MFK: 
Shall the consultant seek for funding based on a list of existing contacts of the 
MFK? Or is it part of this 
project task to search for new contacts? 

The consultant will be expected to develop a list of potential donors. MFK 
and KCGF will provide details on the prioritized list during contract kick-off. 
The final list of donors will be finalized with the awarded consultant, MFK, 
and KCGF.  
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3.  

Communications and Stakeholder Management Plan: “All the costs related to the 
communications and outreach which are obligations of the PMC as per the 
requirements in this task and this SoW including visualization presentations, 
written and illustrative material, media presentations are budgeted as part of this 
RfP and will be covered by PMC” 
In our understanding, the PMC will act as a media communicator on behalf of MFK. 
As all costs are obligation of PMC, has MFK considered a cap of the media 
involvement of PMC during the contractual period (22 months)? 

“All costs” are related to communications and outreach individually 
performed by the PMC. These are not intended to replace or serve as MFK 
funded and planned programmatic or procurement outreach. These are 
envisioned as smaller scale in nature and to augment MFK efforts. 

4.  
Project Management Contract Closure: “Final audit plan” 
What do you refer to Final Audit Plan? Shall it be provided by a third party to audit 
PMC project? 

The Final Audit Plan in relation to the RE IPP Facilitation Activity shall be 
generated by the PMC. 

5.  

5. (a) [This GCC Clause 18(a) may need to be modified to address unique tax 
arrangements in some countries. In situations in which a potential issue exists, the 
relevant MCC OGC attorney is to be consulted before finalizing a form of Contract 
based on this Request for Proposals] Except as may be exempted pursuant to the 
Threshold Program Agreement or another agreement related to the 
Threshold Program Agreement, available in English at [insert web link], the 
Consultant, the Sub- Consultants, and their respective Personnel may be subject to 
certain Taxes on amounts payable by the MCA Entity under this Contract in 
accordance with Applicable Law (now or hereinafter in effect). The Consultant, 
each Sub-Consultant and their respective Personnel shall pay all Taxes levied under 
Applicable Law. In no event shall the MCA Entity be responsible for the payment or 
reimbursement of any Taxes. In the event that any Taxes are imposed on the 
Consultant, any Sub-Consultant or their respective Personnel, the Contract Price 
shall not be adjusted to account for such Taxes. 
(f) The MCA Entity shall use reasonable efforts to ensure that the Government 
provides the Consultant, the Sub-Consultants, and their respective Personnel the 
exemptions from taxation applicable to such persons or entities, in accordance 
with the terms of the Threshold Program Agreement or related agreements. If the 
MCA Entity fails to comply with its obligations under this paragraph, the 
Consultant shall have the right to terminate this Contract in accordance with GCC 
Sub-Clause 20.2(d) With regard to clause 18 in the General Conditions of the  
Contract point (a) & point (f)  
please let us know if for these program we exempted from VAT, and as such the 
submission price in the financial proposal is required without VAT? 

As provided in GCC 18 and under Section 2.5(a) of the Threshold Program 
Grant Agreement, the Consultant will be exempted from: 
i. any tariffs, customs duties, import taxes, export taxes and other similar 
charges on any goods, works or services introduced into Kosovo in connection 
with the Program; 
ii. sales tax, value-added tax, excise tax, property transfer tax and other 
similar charges on any transactions involving goods, works or services in 
connection with the Program; 
iii. taxes and other similar charges on ownership, possession or use of any 
property in connection with the Program; and 
iv. taxes and other similar charges on income, profits or gross receipts 
attributable to work performed in connection with the Program and related 
social security taxes and other similar charges on all natural or legal persons 
performing work in connection with the Program. 
 
However, if the Consultant(s) is a natural person who are citizens or 
permanent residents of Kosovo; and legal persons formed under the laws of 
Kosovo, will not be exempted from taxes and other similar charges on 
income, profits or gross receipts attributable to work performed in 
connection with the Program and related social security taxes. 
 
As per the Threshold Agreement, the Government of Kosovo will ensure that 
MCC’s grant is free from the above-mentioned taxes stipulated under Section 
2.5(a) of the Threshold Agreement. MFK will provide the necessary support 
to ensure that the Consultant does not pay the exempted taxes when 
performing work in connection with the Program. 



 

6.  

The PMC services during Threshold Program Implementation are divided into four 
general activities. The PMC will provide general program management services for 
MFK and its Implementing Entity Partner(s). The PMC will assist MFK during the 
development and tendering of subsequent procurements and capacity building 
activities under the MFK funded Renewable Energy IPP Facilitation Project. The 
PMC will aid MFK and KCGF in key stakeholder engagement and with specific 
regard to capital raising and donor funding activities needed to successfully launch 
a guarantee window. Lastly, the PMC will conduct coordination and oversight to 
ensure program objectives are met, cataloged and reported to MFK and MCC for 
program accountability. As the party providing assistance to Millennium 
Foundation Kosovo for the implementation of the Threshold Program activities, 
the PMC’s primary roles and responsibilities would be as follows: 
… 
• Coordinate and ensure any required MFK-wide training on social and gender 
issues is rolled out to the RE IPP, as relevant, and upon discussion and agreement 
with MFK. 
Question 1a: Please confirm that such trainings on social and gender issues would 
be 
conducted by third party experts under separate procurements and that the PMC 
would draft the TORs for and oversee these trainings. 
 
• Oversee training to KCGF management and staff in project finance, energy 
finance and risk assessment and management of project finance transactions 
Question 1b: Please confirm that such trainings would be conducted by third party 
experts under separate procurements and that the PMC would draft the TORs for 
and oversee these trainings. 
• Oversee Technical Assistance (TA) for the development of projections, risk 
model, and fee determination associated with the RE IPP Guarantee Window. 
Question 1c: Please confirm that such activities would be conducted by third party 
experts under separate procurements and that the PMC would draft the TORs for 
and oversee these activities. 
• Oversee TA for KCGF’s capacity in project and energy finance to establish a RE 
IPP Guarantee Window that will perform sustainably after MFK funding is 
completed. Question 1d: Please confirm that such activities would be conducted 
by third party experts under separate procurements and that the PMC would draft 
the TORs for and oversee these activities. 

Trainings on gender and social inclusion would be performed by third party 
vendors as part of the MFK funded programs. However, the PMC is required 
to be involved and have knowledge, and/or oversight sufficient so that those 
programs are integrated (as deemed appropriate by MFK) into the Scope of 
Work by the consultant/contractor. 

1.a. Confirmed, however, the scope of work for the PMC includes 
conducting internal high level and initial training during the period between 
PMC consultant contract launch, and the procurement of third party 
Technical Assistance Consultants. See “Technical Assistance Activities to 
Enable the Kosovo Credit Guarantee Fund to launch an independently 
capitalized Renewable Energy Guarantee Window”. These activities are 
capability building related, and the PMC, and key personnel are expected to 
take a proactive role in delivering professional services to achieve these 
results. 
 
1.b. Confirmed. However, answer is same as above. These activities are 
capability building related, and the PMC, and key personnel are expected to 
take a proactive role in delivering professional services to achieve these 
results. 
 
 
1.c. Confirmed. However, answer is same as above. These activities are 
capability building related, and the PMC, and key personnel are expected to 
take a proactive role in delivering professional services to achieve these 
results. 
 
 
1.d. Confirmed. However, answer is same as above. These activities are 
capability building related, and the PMC, and key personnel are expected to 
take a proactive role in delivering professional services to achieve these 
results. 
 



 

7.  

We kindly ask clarification on the following sub-section of 2.2 Scope of Services of 
the ToR : 
The PMC will provide these services, including those more fully described below, 
and any and all work necessary to complete these services or carry them out fully. 
Technical developmental finance professional services required under this Scope 
of Work (SOW) have been organized as such, including: … 
• Oversee training (if procured by MFK) for IPP developers, banks, KCGF, and local 
consultants on the use of the template documents and spreadsheets Please 
confirm that such trainings would be conducted by third party experts under 
separate procurements and that the PMC would draft the TORs for and oversee 
these trainings. 

Confirmed, however please see same answer as above. These activities are 
capability building related, and the PMC, and key personnel are expected to 
take a proactive role in delivering professional services to achieve these 
results. 

8.  

Please confirm that the Risk Management Plan (Section 2.2 Scope of 
Services) relates to the RE IPP Guarantee Window at the KCGF and is not a Risk 
Management Plan for KCGF itself. Question 3b: Please confirm that the Change 
Management Plan (Section 2.2 Scope of Services) relates to the RE IPP Guarantee 
Window at the KCGF and is not a Change Management Plan for KCGF itself. 

The PMC is required to develop a Risk Management Plan for the PMC scope 
of work to include risk assessment and mitigation of the follow-on 
procurements the PMC will have a role in developing and overseeing on 
behalf of MCC. The PMC RMP is expected to be holistic and comprehensive.  
 
The PMC RMP is not a Risk Management plan for KCGF operations.  

9.  

Under Task 3 – Project Financial Oversight in Section 2.2 Scope of Services, the 
fourth bullet states that the PMC will be responsible for monitoring “budgets for 
MFK funded Implementing Entities for this project” – in this case KCGF. Please 
clarify whether the PMC will be responsible for monitoring the budget of this 
procurement (the PMC activities) only or if the PMC will have responsibility for 
monitoring third party budgets, including those of the KCGF under the Project. 

The PMC will be responsible for monitoring the budgets of all MFK funded 
activities and reporting to MFK related to IEA funded activities supporting 
KCGF as well as procurements subsequent to the PMC award that support this 
Project. 

10.  

The requirements for the 3 key personnel (Section 4.3) are quite high, and such 
experts require high salaries. In addition, the requirements for management, 
oversight, administration, coordination, facilitation, documentation, and reporting 
are very extensive, which will require additional specialized personnel. We 
understand the maximum budget is only $600,000, and we also understand that 
travel and allowances will not be covered. With this budget, it will not be possible 
for the key experts to be full time. Does the PMC have the flexibility to schedule 
the number of days and level of effort that each expert works on the project, as 
long 
as the project objectives are met, and that the PMC has coverage for necessary 
project meetings and events? 

As per RFP request in Form FIN-2 is requested to provide fully loaded prices 
(including any international travel, communication, local transportation, 
office expenses, shipment of personal effects, direct and indirect rates and 
profits).  
 
The contractor should propose the most realistic approach that technically 
meeting the RFP requirements. The consultant is free to present their best 
technical approach that meets all the requirements under the period of 
performance. 



 

11.  

Task 4 – Third Party Consultancy and Technical Resource Manager (Section 2.2 of 
the ToR) states that the PMC shall “ … develop a strategy on preparing and 
packaging any residual or follow on professional technical consulting services 
tender packages needed to achieve MFK state goals under the Renewable Energy 
IPP Finance Facilitation Project. 
 However, in Section 3.3 Reporting and Deliverables, Deliverable 5 is listed as: 
“Tender Documents / completed packages according to MFK/MCC standards” 
(there is no mention of a preceding strategy). 
Could MKF please confirm that Deliverable 5 is the Strategy on preparing and 
packaging any residual or follow on professional technical consulting services 
tender packages? 

Deliverable 5 are the tender documents. In order to deliver these 
deliverables, the consultant should be able to clearly articulate a strategy. 

12.  

Section:  I: Instructions to Consultants 
Page: 11 
 
With respect to subsection 5.5, does MCC anticipate that consultants that are 
performing work under this vehicle will be disqualified from bidding on future U.S. 
Government contracts covering the energy space in Kosovo? 

A Consultant shall not have a conflict of interest related to this contract as 
described in section I. Instructions to Consultants, paragraph 5.5, 5.6 and 5.8  
 
For example, a Consultant hired to prepare terms of reference for an 
assignment should not be hired for the assignment in question. 

13.  

Section:  III: Qualification and Evaluation Criteria 
Page: 38 
 
With respect to subsection 1.2, it seems that the MCC contemplates the period of 
performance for this work to end when the Threshold Period ends. Can MCC 
confirm that the period of performance for this work is from contract execution 
through September 2021? 

The period of performance will end when the Threshold Program (THP) ends. 
The THP is planned to end, September 2021.  
 
This Contract shall expire on 30 September 2021, unless otherwise agreed 
upon by both parties. 

14.  

IV: Financial Proposal Forms 
 
Subsection 3.4 indicates that the consultants are required to have a minimum of 
10 years' experience in the enumerated subject matter in Sub-criteria A1-A3. 
Outside of this particular experience, are there any particular disqualifying criteria 
related to who may be bid as consultants for this work? 

This RFP is open to all eligible entities (“Consultants”) who wish to respond. 
Subject to restrictions noted in the RFP which are described in Section I. 
Instructions to Consultants paragraph 5. 

End of the document 
 


